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APPENDIX A: Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee  

Name Agency/Jurisdiction Title Participation 
Blackfeet Tribe 

Robert DesRosier Blackfeet Tribe DES/HS 
Pre-Kickoff, Mitigation 
Workshop, Monthly 
Meetings 

Nora Kennedy Blackfeet Tribe Admin. Assistant to Mr. 
DesRosier 

Tribal Planning Team 
Meetings 

Sarah Wolf Tail Blackfeet Tribe Director for DES / 
Homeland Security 

Tribal Planning Team 
Meetings 

Brittney Wolf Tail Blackfeet Tribe Deputy DES/Dispatcher/ 
RAVE Coordinator  

Tribal Planning Team 
Meetings 

Blaine County 
Amber B Calvert Blaine County Deputy Clerk & Recorder Monthly Meetings 

Ashley Birdtail Blaine County Prevention Specialist Monthly Meetings 

Debbie Gomke Blaine County Sheriff's Office 
Administrative Assistant Monthly Meetings 

Dolores Plumage Blaine County County Commissioner 
Pre-Kickoff, Risk 
Assessment, Monthly 
Meetings 

Frank DePriest Blaine County County Commissioner 
Pre-Kickoff, Risk 
Assessment Meeting, 
Monthly Meetings 

Haley Velk Blaine County Emergency Manager, GIS 

Pre-Kickoff, Risk 
Assessment, Mitigation 
Workshop, Monthly 
Meetings 

John Colby Blaine County County Sheriff Monthly Meetings 

Lindsay Lowe Blaine County County Road Admin/DES 

Pre-Kickoff, Risk 
Assessment, Mitigation 
Workshop, Monthly 
Meetings 

Mark Weber Blaine County County Health Dept. Risk Assessment, Monthly 
Meetings 

Miles Hutton Blaine County County Commissioner Monthly Meetings 

Ron Anderson Blaine County County Environmental 
Health Supervisor Monthly Meetings 

Shane Fox Blaine County County Commissioner Monthly Meetings 

Tina Mord Blaine County County Juvenile 
Probation Monthly Meetings 

Toni Collin Blaine County County Public Health Monthly meetings 
Valerie Beck Blaine County County Health Nurse Monthly Meetings 
Elmer Dean Zarn City of Chinook Chinook Police Chief Monthly Meetings 
Emily Harshman City of Chinook City Clerk Kickoff, Monthly Meetings 
Gabe Matosich City of Chinook Police Chief Monthly Meetings 
Glenn Huestis City of Chinook Mayor Mitigation Workshops 
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Name Agency/Jurisdiction Title Participation 

John Blankenship City of Chinook Chinook Water Plant 
Superintendent Risk Assessment 

Robert Smith City of Chinook Chinook Council/ 
Northwestern Energy Kickoff, Monthly Meetings 

Shannon Sattleen City of Chinook Council Member/County 
Safety Officer Monthly Meetings 

Kim Hansen City of Harlem Mayor 
Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshops, 
Monthly Meetings 

Cascade County 

Brad Call Cascade County Disaster & Emergency 
Services Director 

Pre-Kickoff, Kickoff, Risk 
Assessment, Mitigation 
Workshops, Monthly 
Meetings 

Charity Yonkers Cascade County Planning Director/ 
Floodplain Administrator Kickoff 

Colin Campbell Cascade County 
Public Health Emergency 
Preparedness & 
Community Planner 

Monthly Meetings 

Glenna Violette Cascade County County DES Coordinator 
Assistant 

Pre-Kickoff, Kickoff, Risk 
Assessment, Monthly 
Meetings 

Tom Mital Cascade County County GIS- Mapping Kickoff 

Jeremy Jones City of Great Falls Emergency Management 
& Preparedness Monthly Meetings 

Katie Brewer City of Great Falls Emergency Management 
& Preparedness 

Kickoff, Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshops, 
Monthly Meetings 

Jim Olson Town of Belt  Mayor 
Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshops, 
Monthly Meetings 

Jodie Campbell Town of Cascade City Clerk Monthly Meetings 
Kendra McEwen Town of Cascade Clerk Monthly Meetings 

Robert Reissing Town of Cascade Town Council Member Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 

Chippewa Cree Rocky Boy Tribe 

Richard MacDonald Chippewa Cree Rocky Boy 
Tribe POC/Data Coordinator 

Pre-Kickoff, Kickoff, Risk 
Assessment, Mitigation 
Workshops, Monthly 
Meetings 

Trevor Standing Rock  
Chippewa Cree Rocky Boy 
Tribe Planning Director 

Tribal Planning Team 
Meetings 

Curtis Monteau 
Chippewa Cree Rocky Boy 
Tribe Roads Director 

Tribal Planning Team 
Meetings 

Ted Whitford 
Chippewa Cree Rocky Boy 
Tribe 

Tribal Water Resources 
Director 

Tribal Planning Team 
Meetings 
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Name Agency/Jurisdiction Title Participation 

Bobbi Jo Favel 
Chippewa Cree Rocky Boy 
Tribe 

Natural Resources 
Director 

Tribal Planning Team 
Meetings 

Multiple Board Members 
Chippewa Cree Rocky Boy 
Tribe 

Chippewa Cree Health 
Board 

Tribal Planning Team 
Meetings 

Choteau County 

Debbie Gessaman Choteau County DES Emergency Manager 
Kickoff, Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshops, 
Monthly Meetings 

Jennifer Blansett Choteau County Deputy Emergency 
Manager 

Kickoff, Risk Assessment, 
Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshops, 
Monthly Meetings 

Pete Jerrel Choteau County District 1 Road Crew 
Supervisor Kickoff 

Robert Stevenson Choteau County Sanitarian Kickoff, Monthly Meetings 

Carlos Rodriguez City of Fort Benton Water Manager/ 
Supervisor Mitigation Workshops 

Lanny Walker City of Fort Benton Mayor Mitigation Workshops, 
Monthly Meetings 

Scott Ort City of Fort Benton Crew Supervisor Mitigation Workshops 

Nicole Allderdice Town of Big Sandy Secretary/Treasurer Monthly Meetings 

Rich Jespersen Town of Big Sandy Council Member Mitigation Workshops 

Shaud Swartzbauch Town of Big Sandy Mayor Monthly Meetings 
Wendy Kleinsasser Town of Big Sandy Clerk Monthly Meetings 

Fergus County 

Holly Phelps City of Lewistown City Manager Pre-Kickoff, Monthly 
Meetings 

Kellie Davis Town of Denton Clerk Provided information from 
Town Council & Mayor 

Ed Geary  Town of Grass Range Mayor Mitigation Workshop 
Patti Bradley Town of Grass Range Town Council Person Mitigation Workshop 
Terrena Fogle Town of Moore Clerk Monthly Meetings 
Cheri Kjersern Town of Winifred Clerk Mitigation Workshop 

Diane Brodd Fergus County DES Coordinator Deputy 
Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 

Kent Sipe Fergus County Attorney Pre-kickoff, Kickoff 

Richard Vaughn Fergus County Sheriff Pre-kickoff, Kickoff, 
Monthly Meetings 

Ryan Peterson Fergus County DES/Fire Warden 
Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 

Glacier County 

Curtis Harper Glacier County Northern Rockies 
Hospital/DES Assistant 

Risk Assessment, Monthly 
Meetings 
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Name Agency/Jurisdiction Title Participation 

Judd Milender Glacier County County DES Director Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meeting 

Lanaina Upham Glacier County DES County Coordinator Risk Assessment, Monthly 
Meeting 

Melissa Lavendure Glacier County Glacier County Health Pre-Kickoff 
Napi Billedeaux Glacier County Glacier County Monthly Meetings 

James Suta City of Cut Bank Superintendent of Public 
Works Mitigation Workshop 

Kim Winchell City of Cut Bank Mayor (incoming) Risk Assessment 
Mike Wilstrom East Glacier Fire  Fire Chief Kickoff 

Hill County 

Amanda Frickel Hill County 
County DES/Fire 
Warden/Red Cross 
Contact 

Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 

Bridget Kallenberger Hill County Health Department Monthly Meetings 

Dave Peterson Hill County County Public Works 
Kickoff, Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 

Diane McLean Hill County  Commissioner Kickoff, Monthly Meetings 

Dave Peterson City of Havre City Public Works/City 
Flood/City Planning 

Kickoff, Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 

Jason Barkus City of Havre Assistant Police Chief  Kickoff, Monthly Meetings 
Michele Young City of Havre Havre Family Connections Monthly Meetings 

Nathan Courtnage City of Havre Assistant Fire Chief Risk Assessment, Monthly 
Meetings 

Sandra Peterson Town of Hingham Clerk 
Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 

Thomas Peterson Town of Hingham Mayor Mitigation Workshop 
Judith Basin County 

Mike Howell Judith Basin County County DES Coordinator 
Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 

Shawn Tater Erickson Town of Hobson Hobson Fire Chief Monthly Meetings 
Brent Miller Town of Stanford Mayor Monthly Meetings 

Liberty County 
David Ghekiere Liberty County Fire Chief Pre-kickoff, Kickoff 

Justin Wickum Liberty County Road Department 
Supervisor Pre-kickoff, Kickoff 

Kayla Johnson Liberty County DES Director 
Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 

Larry Hendrickson Liberty County County Commissioner Mitigation Workshop 

Melissa Kantorowicz Liberty County Public Health Manager Risk Assessment, Monthly 
Meetings 
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Name Agency/Jurisdiction Title Participation 
Shane Gagnon Liberty County County Commissioner Mitigation Workshops 
Tara Hendrickson Liberty County EMS Ambulance Director Pre-Kickoff 

Ashley Wickum Town of Chester Town Clerk 
Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 

Petroleum County  

Bill Cassell Petroleum County DES County Coordinator Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 

Gary Fitzgerald Petroleum County DES County Coordinator Monthly Meetings 
Jay King Petroleum County Planning Board Member Kickoff 
Paul McKenna Petroleum County County Commissioner Kickoff 
Brad Olson Town of Winnett Winnett Council Kickoff 

Orren Kiehl Petrolia Irrigation District President 
Provided information on 
Petrolia Dam, submitted 
mitigation action 

Phillips County  

LeeAnn Pankratz Phillips County DES Coordinator Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 

David Rummel City of Malta  Councilperson Kickoff, Monthly Meetings 
Joshua Newman City of Malta  Fire Chief Kickoff 
Lorie Bond City of Malta  Clerk Risk Assessment, 

Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 

Ernie Marinko Town of Saco Clerk Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 

Pondera County 

Cynthia Grubb Pondera County Rural Health Clinic 
Manager 

Pre-Kickoff, Kickoff, 
Monthly Meetings 

Dale Siefert Pondera County Commissioner Kickoff, Risk Assessment 
Jim Morren Pondera County Commissioner Risk Assessment 

Melinda Burns Pondera County DES County Coordinator Risk Assessment, Monthly 
Meetings 

Robert Skorupa Pondera County County Sheriff Kickoff 

Tom Kuka Pondera County Commissioner Mitigation Workshops, 
Monthly Meetings 

Hillary Rifter City of Conrad Finance Officer Mitigation Workshop 

Jamie Miller City of Conrad Mayor Risk Assessment, Monthly 
Meetings 

Teton County 

Amanda Copenhaver Teton County Benefis Hospital Disaster 
Coordinator 

Pre-Kickoff, Monthly 
Meetings 

Dani Arps Teton County Planner/GIS Risk Assessment, Monthly 
Meetings 

Deb Coverdell Teton County EMS/DES Coordinator 
Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 
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Name Agency/Jurisdiction Title Participation 

Loren Dunk Teton County Power School 
Superintendent 

Pre-kickoff, Kickoff, 
Monthly Meetings 

Steve Rose Teton County Fire/DES Coordinator 
Kickoff, Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 

Chris Hindoien City of Choteau Mayor 
Kickoff, Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshops, 
Monthly Meetings 

Sayde Wallace Town of Dutton Assistant Clerk Mitigation Workshop 

Susan Fleshman Town of Dutton Mayor 
Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 

Loren Tacke Town of Fairfield Mayor Mitigation Workshops 
Toole County 

Chad Scharborough Toole County 1st Baptist Church Pre-Kickoff, Kickoff, 
Monthly Meetings 

Kelsey Buckley Toole County DES County Coordinator 
Kickoff, Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 

Kris Ingenthron Toole County MRE Electric Co-op 
General Manager  Kickoff 

Beverly Postma Town of Kevin Clerk 
Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 

Gary McDermott Town of Shelby Mayor Kickoff 

Crystal McAlpline Town of Sunburst 

 

Clerk 

 

Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshop, 
Monthly Meetings 

State of Montana 

Amanda Avard Montana DES Preparedness Program 
Manager 

Mitigation Workshops, 
Monthly Meetings 

Andrew Long Montana DES Mitigation Coordinator Risk Assessment 
Ed Greiberis Montana DES Field Officer Risk Assessment 

Hannah Shultz Montana DES Mitigation Coordinator 

Pre-kickoff, Kickoff, Risk 
Assessment, Mitigation 
Workshops, Monthly 
Meetings 

Joey Zahara Montana DES Training & Exercise 
Coordinator Risk Assessment 

Sara Hartley Montana DES State Hazard Mitigation 
Officer 

Pre-kickoff, Kickoff, Risk 
Assessment, Monthly 
Meetings 

Kristi Kline Montana Rural Water 
System 

Source Water Protection 
Specialist Mitigation Workshop 

Stakeholders 
William Hoekema Border Patrol Senior Agent Kickoff 

Ryan Madson Bureau of Reclamation Emergency Management 
Coordinator Kickoff 
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Name Agency/Jurisdiction Title Participation 

Toby Tabor Bureau of Reclamation Marias-Milk Rivers 
Division Kickoff 

Shannon Bonney Bureau of Land 
Management 

Fire Mitigation and 
Education Specialist Kickoff 

Teresa Hanley Bureau of Land 
Management Acting State Director Kickoff 

Abby Hall Environmental Protection 
Agency 

Senior Advisor on Local 
and Regional Planning Monthly Meetings 

Emily Alvarez FEMA Community Planner Kickoff, Risk Assessment, 
Monthly Meetings 

Katie Baum FEMA Community Planner Kickoff, Risk Assessment, 
Monthly Meetings 

Rob Pressley FEMA Community Planner Kickoff, Risk Assessment, 
Monthly Meetings 

Kristin K. Smith Headwaters Economics Researcher Kickoff, Risk Assessment, 
Monthly Meetings 

Robert Hart National Weather 
Service, Great Falls 

Warning Coordination 
Meteorologist  Kickoff 

Shannon Sattleen NRCS Blaine Conservation 
District Monthly Meetings 

Jeff Greenwald USACE Environmental Planner Mitigation Workshops, 

Laurel Hamilton USACE Hydraulic Engineer Risk Assessment, 
Mitigation Workshops, 

Dorothy Gremaux Central Montana 911 911 Supervisor Kickoff 

Noah Davis Northwestern Energy District Manager Pre-Kickoff, Kickoff 
Tim Rossette Rocky Boy Health Center EMH Kickoff 

Cathy Barta 
Snowy Mountain 
Development 
Corporation 

Director for Strategic 
Development Kickoff 

Consultant Team 

Jeff Brislawn WSP USA Project Manager 
Pre-Kickoff, Kickoff, Risk 
Assessment, Monthly 
Meetings 

Scott Field WSP USA Central Region Lead 
Planner 

Pre-kickoff, Kickoff, Risk 
Assessment, Mitigation 
Workshops, Monthly 
Meetings 

Emily Geery SWCA Mitigation Specialist Kickoff 
Tim Clute SWCA Assistant Project Biologist Risk Assessment Meeting 
Victoria Amato SWCA Principal Planner Risk Assessment Meeting 
Debra Shewfelt RESPEC  Consultant Risk Assessment Meeting 
Megan Burke RESPEC Consultant Risk Assessment Meeting 
Thomas Michalek RESPEC Consultant Risk Assessment Meeting 
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Other Stakeholders Invited to Participate 
Academia MSU Great Falls College  Liberty County Planning Department 
Academia University of Providence  Media Blaine County Journal 
Airport  GF Airport Authority  Media Fort Belknap News 
Blaine County Contract Planner  Media KGVA Radio Station 
Business BSNF Railway Co  Medical Northfork Wellness 
Business Great Falls Area Chamber 

of Commerce  Medical Sweet Home Nursing 
Director 

Business Greenfield Industries  Medical Sweet Medical Center - 
One Health 

Business INDHemp Plant   Neighboring County  Chouteau County DES 
Business K-Heart Veterinary 

Service  Neighboring County  Judith Basin County DES 

Business Laugh N Learn Childcare  Neighboring County  Lewis & Clark County DES 
Business Maltreuop NA Inc  Neighboring County  Meagher County DES 
Business Montana Flour and Grain  Neighboring County  Teton County DES 
Business Phillips 66 Pipeline Co  Nonprofit Cascade Conservation 

District 
Business Snowy Mountain 

Development Corp.  Nonprofit Harlem Ministerial 
Association  

Business/Infrastructure Fergus Electric  Nonprofit Salvation Army 
Business/Infrastructure Tiber Dam  Pondera County Planning Department 
Business/Infrastructure Triangle Communications  Schools Chinook Public Schools  
Business/Infrastructure Verizon  Schools Harlem School 
Business/Infrastructure West Great Falls Flood 

Control  Schools Turner Public Schools  

Chippewa Cree Tribe Planning Department  Schools Zurich Schools  
Chouteau County  Planning Department  State of Montana Farm Service Agency FSA 
City of Great Falls Planning & Community 

Development  State of Montana Havre Regional Engineer 

Federal Bureau of Indian Affairs  State of Montana Montana Bureau of Mines 
& Geology 

Federal Indian Health Service  State of Montana Montana Department of 
Transportation  

Federal Malstrom Air Force Base  State of Montana Montana Dept. of Natural 
Resources & Conservation  

Federal U.S. Forest Service  State of Montana Montana Fish, Wildlife, & 
Parks 

Fergus County Planning Department  State of Montana Montana Highway Patrol 
Glacier County Planning Department    
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APPENDIX B: PLANNING PROCESS DOCUMENTATION 

Note: This appendix provides documentation of the plan update process during the 2022-2023 timeframe.   



 Montana Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 
Appendix B: Planning Process Documentation 

2023-2028 Page (B)-2 

Kickoff Meeting: March 31, 2022 
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Slido Polls: Kickoff Meeting 
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Risk Assessment Meeting: March 31, 2022 
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Hazard Survey Results, Risk Assessment Meeting 
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Mitigation Strategy Workshops: October 11-13, 2022 
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Selection and Prioritization Criteria and Example Mitigation Action Items 
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Public Survey 
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Public Survey Outreach (Representative Sample) 
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Public Comment Period Outreach (Representative Sample) 
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APPENDIX C: Public Input  

Public Survey 

Public and stakeholder input was collected at the beginning of the planning process through an online 

survey from July 11 through August 8, 2022. The survey was advertised by the County and participating 

jurisdictions through social media. 

The survey provided an opportunity for public input during the planning process prior to finalization of 

the plan update. The public survey received responses from 265 individuals. Responses to the survey are 

shown below. Based on this survey, the public perceives the most significant hazards to be wildfire, 

drought, and winter storms. 

Which County or Reservation do you live in?  

 

 

  

Toole
28%
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15%
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13%

Phillips
13%

Teton
9%
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Where in the County do you live?  

 

 

 

Please indicate the level of significance you perceive for each hazard for the community you live in. 

 

 

Municipality
70%

Unincorporated
30%

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Low Medium High



Montana Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 
Appendix C: Public Input 

 

 
2023-2028  Page (C)-3 

Please indicate the significance you perceive for the following mitigation action categories. 

 

 

Please indicate the types of mitigation actions that you think should have the highest priority. 

 

  

0 50 100 150 200 250 300

Local Planning and Regulations

Structure and Infrastructure projects

Natural Systems Protection

Education and Awareness Programs

Enhancing Administration and Procedures

Low Medium High

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160



Montana Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 
Appendix C: Public Input 

 

 
2023-2028  Page (C)-4 

Other hazards/specific hazard issues/problem areas?  
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Public Draft Comment Period 

Prior to finalizing, a draft of the regional plan was made available to the public for review and comment 

in August and September 2023. The plan and annexes were made available on the MTDES website as 

well via an online public engagement space, shown in Figure C-1. The counties and tribes used social 

media, website posts, and email blasts to announce the public comment period. An online feedback 

form was provided to collect specific comments.  

Three public comments were received on the draft plan. They were reviewed with the HMPC, but did 

not result in any meaningful changes to the HMP or its Annexes.  

Figure C-1 Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan Virtual Public Engagement Space  
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APPENDIX D: PLAN ADOPTION AND APPROVAL 

Note: This appendix provides documentation of the required record of adoption which will be incorporated 

when available. When the plan is adopted in 2023 a scanned version of the adoption resolutions will be 

inserted for each participating jurisdiction within Blaine, Cascade, Chouteau, Fergus, Glacier, Hill, Judith 

Basin, Liberty, Petroleum, Phillips, Pondera, Teton, Toole counties as well as Blackfeet Nation, Chippewa 

Cree Tribe, and Fort Belknap Indian Community. A sample adoption resolution is provided here. The final 

FEMA approval packed will be included for future reference regarding the five-year expiration date and 

suggestions for improvement in the next update.  
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Mitigation Plan Adoption Sample Resolution 

Resolution # ______ 

Adopting the 2023 Montana Central Region 

Hazard Mitigation Plan  

Whereas, (name of county or community) recognizes the threat that natural hazards pose to 

people and property within our community; and 

Whereas, undertaking hazard mitigation actions will reduce the potential for harm to people and 

property from future hazard occurrences; and 

Whereas, an adopted Hazard Mitigation Plan is required as a condition of future funding for 

mitigation projects under multiple FEMA pre- and post-disaster mitigation grant programs; and 

Whereas, (name of county or community) resides within the Planning Area, and fully participated 

in the mitigation planning process to prepare this Hazard Mitigation Plan; and 

 Whereas, the Montana Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management and Federal 

Emergency Management Agency, Region VIII officials have reviewed the 2023 Montana Regional 

Hazard Mitigation Plan and approved it contingent upon this official adoption of the participating 

governing body; and 

Now, therefore, be it resolved, that the (name of board or council), hereby adopts the Montana 

Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan, as an official plan; and 

 Be it further resolved, the County of _________ will submit this Adoption Resolution to the 

Montana Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management and Federal Emergency 

Management Agency, Region VIII officials to enable the Plan’s final approval. 

 

Passed: ___(date)___   

_________________    

  Certifying Official 
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Blackfeet Nation 
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Chippewa Cree Tribe Adoption Records 

 

Chippewa Cree Tribe 
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Blaine County Adoption Records 

 

 

Blaine County 

City of Chinook 

City of Harlem 
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Cascade County Adoption Records 

Cascade County 

City of Great Falls 

Town of Belt 

Town of Cascade 

Town of Neihart 
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Chouteau County Adoption Records 

Chouteau County 

City of Fort Benton 

Town of Big Sandy 
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Fergus County Adoption Records 

Fergus County 

City of Lewistown 

Town of Denton 

Town of Grass Range 

Town of Moore 

Town of Winifred 
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Glacier County Adoption Records 

 

Glacier County 

City of Cut Bank 
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Hill County Adoption Records 

 

Hill County 

City of Havre 

Town of Hingham 
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Judith Basin County Adoption Records 

 

Judith Basin County 

Town of Hobson 

Town of Stanford 
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Liberty County Adoption Records 

 

Liberty County 

Town of Chester 
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Petroleum County Adoption Records 

 

Petroleum County 

Town of Winnett 
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Phillips County Adoption Records 

 

Phillips County 

City of Malte 

Town of Saco 
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Pondera County Adoption Records 

 

Pondera County 

City of Conrad 
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Teton County Adoption Records 

 

Teton County 

City of Choteau 

Town of Dutton 

Town of Fairfield 
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Toole County Adoption Records 

 

Toole County 

Town of Kevin 

Town of Shelby 

Town of Sunburst 
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APPENDIX E: REFERENCES 

Analysis of the Cyber Attack on the Ukrainian Power Grid: https://blog.isa.org/lessons-learned-forensic-

analysis-ukrainian-power-grid-cyberattack-malware 

ArboNET: https://www.cdc.gov/mosquitoes/mosquito-control/professionals/ArboNET.html 

Arboviral Diseases Branch: https://www.cdc.gov/ncezid/dvbd/specimensub/arc/index.html 

Armed Conflict Location and Event Data Project: https://acleddata.com/ 

Association of State Dam Safety Officials: https://damsafety.org/ 

Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities: https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/building-

resilient-infrastructure-communities 

Bureau of Indian Affairs: https://www.bia.gov/ 

Bureau of Land Management: https://www.blm.gov/ 

Bureau of Reclamation: https://www.usbr.gov/ 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: https://www.cdc.gov/index.htm 

Community Wildfire Protection Plans: https://dnrc.mt.gov/Forestry/Community-Local-

Government/MT_CWPP_Guideline_FINAL.pdf 

Count Love: https://countlove.org/ 

County Assessor Data: http://www.assessordata.org/ 

Dam incident Database: https://damsafety.org/incidents 

Digital Flood Insurance Rate Maps: https://www.floodsmart.gov/hurricane-

season/texas?gclid=EAIaIQobChMIzLXnws7SgAMVXoxoCR17PQn9EAAYAiAAEgJM7fD_BwE&gclsrc=aw.ds 

Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (Public Law 106-390): https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/2020-

11/fema_disaster-mitigation-act-of-2000_10-30-2000.pdf 

Emsisoft: https://www.emsisoft.com/en/ 

Environmental Protection Agency: https://www.epa.gov/ 

EPA Regional Resilience Toolkit: https://www.epa.gov/smartgrowth/regional-resilience-toolkit 

Existing Local and Tribal HMPs: https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/risk-management/hazard-

mitigation-planning/status 

Federal Bureau of Investigation: https://www.usa.gov/agencies/federal-bureau-of-investigation 

FBI Internet Crime Report 2021: https://www.ic3.gov/Media/PDF/AnnualReport/2021_IC3Report.pdf 

FBI report Active Shooters Incidents, 20-Year Review 2000-2019: https://www.fbi.gov/file-

repository/active-shooter-incidents-20-year-review-2000-2019-060121.pdf/view 

FEMA Community Rating System:  https://www.fema.gov/floodplain-management/community-rating-

system 

FEMA National Risk Index: https://hazards.fema.gov/nri/determining-risk 

FEMA Hazard Mitigation Plan: https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/risk-management/hazard-

mitigation-planning 

https://blog.isa.org/lessons-learned-forensic-analysis-ukrainian-power-grid-cyberattack-malware
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https://www.ic3.gov/Media/PDF/AnnualReport/2021_IC3Report.pdf
https://www.fbi.gov/file-repository/active-shooter-incidents-20-year-review-2000-2019-060121.pdf/view
https://www.fbi.gov/file-repository/active-shooter-incidents-20-year-review-2000-2019-060121.pdf/view
https://www.fema.gov/floodplain-management/community-rating-system
https://www.fema.gov/floodplain-management/community-rating-system
https://hazards.fema.gov/nri/determining-risk
https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/risk-management/hazard-mitigation-planning
https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/risk-management/hazard-mitigation-planning


Montana Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 
Appendix E. References and Resources 

2023-2028 Page (E)-2 

FEMA Hazard Mitigation Assistance: https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation 

FMEA NRI Technical Documentation 2021: https://hazards.fema.gov/nri/determining-risk 

FEMA Region 8: https://www.fema.gov/about/organization/region-8 

Flood Mitigation Assistance: https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/floods 

Georgetown University Medical Center, 2022 “New Study Finds Climate Change Could Spark The Next 

Pandemic”: https://www.enn.com/articles/70219-new-study-finds-climate-change-could-spark-the-next-

pandemic 

Global Terrorism Database: Global Terrorism Database (umd.edu) 

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program: https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/hazard-mitigation 

Headwater Economics 2022: https://headwaterseconomics.org/ 

Homeland Infrastructure Foundation-Level Data, 2022: https://hifld-geoplatform.opendata.arcgis.com/ 

Integrated Benefits Institute: https://www.ibiweb.org/ 

Montana Bureau of Mines and Geology: https://www.mbmg.mtech.edu/#gsc.tab=0 

Montana Cybersecurity Report: https://www.pinecc.com/montana-cyber-security-report 

Montana Department of Natural Resources & Conservation: https://dnrc.mt.gov/ 

Montana Department of Transportation: https://www.mdt.mt.gov/ 

Montana Department of Justice: https://dojmt.gov/ 

Montana Department of Justice Office of Consumer Protection: 

https://www.montanalawhelp.org/resource/office-of-consumer-protection-mt-department-of-justice 

Montana Disaster & Emergency Services: https://des.mt.gov/ 

Montana Climate Assessment 2017; Bozeman and Missoula MT: Montana State University and University 

of Montana, Montana Institute on Ecosystems. https://montanaclimate.org/  

Montana Corona Virus Relief Fund: https://commerce.mt.gov/Coronavirus-Relief 

Montana Forest Action Plan (2020): https://www.montanaforestactionplan.org/ 

Montana Climate Solutions Plan (2020): https://deq.mt.gov/files/DEQAdmin/Climate/2020-09-

09_MontanaClimateSolutions_Final.pdf 

Montana Ecological Services Field Office: https://www.fws.gov/office/montana-ecological-services/species 

Montana Hazard Mitigation Website: mitigationplanmt.com. 

Montana State Library: https://msl.mt.gov/ 

Montana Wildfire Risk Assessment: https://mwra-mtdnrc.hub.arcgis.com/documents/montana-wildfire-

risk-assessment-report/explore 

NASA: https://www.nasa.gov/ 

National Risk Index: https://www.fema.gov/flood-maps/products-tools/national-risk-index 

National Bridge Inventory: https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bridge/nbi.cfm 

National Centers for Environmental Information: https://www.ncei.noaa.gov/ 

https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation
https://hazards.fema.gov/nri/determining-risk
https://www.fema.gov/about/organization/region-8
https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/floods
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https://www.mbmg.mtech.edu/#gsc.tab=0
https://www.pinecc.com/montana-cyber-security-report
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https://www.montanalawhelp.org/resource/office-of-consumer-protection-mt-department-of-justice
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https://deq.mt.gov/files/DEQAdmin/Climate/2020-09-09_MontanaClimateSolutions_Final.pdf
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https://www.fws.gov/office/montana-ecological-services/species
file:///C:/Users/cherlyn.carter/Desktop/Scott/mitigationplanmt.com
https://msl.mt.gov/
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National Inventory of Dams: https://nid.sec.usace.army.mil/#/ 

Natural Hazard Mitigation Saves, 2019 Report: https://www.nibs.org/projects/natural-hazard-mitigation-

saves-2019-report 

National Response Center Incident Report Database: https://www.epa.gov/emergency-response/national-

response-center 

NOAA/NWS: https://www.weather.gov/ 

National Pipeline Mapping Systems: https://www.npms.phmsa.dot.gov/ 

National Wildfire Coordinating Group: https://www.nwcg.gov/ 

Our World in Data- Global Change Data Lab: https://ourworldindata.org/organization 

Privacy Rights Clearinghouse: https://privacyrights.org/ 

Rehabilitation of Hazard Potential Dam: https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/risk-

management/dam-safety/rehabilitation-high-hazard-potential-dams 

Residential Proximity to Environmental Hazards and Adverse Health Outcomes: 

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/ 

Right to Know Network: https://rjifuture.org/  

Roadside Geology of Montana; Donald W. Hyndman and Robert C. Thomas. Mountain Press, 2020. 

Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Act (Public Law 93-288): 

https://www.fema.gov/disaster/stafford-act 

Social Vulnerability Index: https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/placeandhealth/svi/index.html 

Social Vulnerability and Community Resilience Working Group: 

https://www.census.gov/content/dam/Census/library/working-papers/2022/demo/sehsd-wp2022-25.pdf 

State of Montana Department of Public Health and Human Services: https://dphhs.mt.gov/ 

Teton County Hazard Mitigation Plan 2021: https://tetoncomt.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/2021-

Teton-County-Hazard-Mitigation-Plan.pdf 

Tribal Mitigation Plans, Title 44 of the Code of Regulations, Section 201.7: 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-44/chapter-I/subchapter-D/part-201/section-201.7 

Tsvetanov, Tsvetan & Srishti Slaria, The effect of the Colonial Pipeline shutdown on gasoline prices, 2021. 

https://ideas.repec.org/a/eee/ecolet/v209y2021ics0165176521003992.html  

University of South Carolina’s Hazard and Vulnerability Research Institute Baseline Resilience Indicators for 

Communities: 

https://sc.edu/study/colleges_schools/artsandsciences/centers_and_institutes/hvri/index.php/sovi%C2%AE

-0 

Urban Institute: https://www.urban.org/ 

US Air Force: https://www.airforce.com/ 

US Army Corps of Engineers: https://www.usace.army.mil/ 

U.S. Census Bureau ACS 5-year Estimates: https://www.census.gov/data/developers/data-sets/acs-

5year.html 

https://nid.sec.usace.army.mil/#/
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US Coast Guard 2017-2021 Recreational Boating Statistics: https://uscgboating.org/library/accident-

statistics/Recreational-Boating-Statistics-2021.pdf 

US Crisis Monitor: https://acleddata.com/special-projects/us-crisis-monitor/ 

US Department of Agriculture: https://www.usda.gov/ 

US Department of Health and Human Services: https://www.hhs.gov/ 

US Department of Homeland Security: https://www.dhs.gov/ 

US Department of Transportation Federal Highway Administration Technical Advisory: 

https://highways.dot.gov/ 

US EPA: https://www.epa.gov/ 

US Forest Service: https://www.fs.usda.gov/ 

US Geological Survey: https://www.usgs.gov/ 

2012 International Building Code: https://codes.iccsafe.org/content/IBC2012 

2013 FEMA Local Mitigation Planning Handbook: https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/2020-06/fema-

local-mitigation-planning-handbook_03-2013.pdf 

2018 Montana State Hazard Mitigation Plan: 

https://drought.unl.edu/archive/plans/GeneralHazard/state/MT_2018.pdf 

2019 Montana DPHHS Communicable Disease in Montana Annual Report: 

https://dphhs.mt.gov/assets/publichealth/CDEpi/StatisticsandReports/CDEpiAnnualSummaryReports/Ann

ualReport2019final51222.pdf 
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